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Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission alleges as follows:
SUMMARY

1. This case concerns misconduct by two former officers and directors of Natural
Health Trends Corp. (“NHT”), a Dallas-based multi-level marketing company. Mark D.
Woodburn (“Woodbum”), the company’s President, and Terry LaCore (“LaCore”) (together, the
“Defendants”), the CEO of NHT’s chief subsidiary, took advantage of their positions and the
company’s lax internal controls to effectuate lucrative undisclosed related party transactions.

2. From 2001 through August 2005 (the “relevant period”), NHT’s top distributor
(the “Distributor”) paid Woodburn and LaCore, directly and indirectly, approximately $2.5
million in undisclosed payments, which were a portion of sales commissions that NHT paid the
Distributor.

3. In February 2004, Woodburn caused NHT to loan $256,200 to a Woodburn
family-controlled company. Woodburn took steps to conceal the related party nature of the loan

when it was discovered by NHT’s new accounting management in the fall of 2004.



4, As a result of Woodburn and LaCore’s activities, NHT failed to disclose, or
inadequately disclosed, the related party transactions in periodic filings, registration statements,
and proxy statements. After NHT discovered the extent of the executives’ conduct in the fall of
2005, it demoted, and later terminated, Woodburn and Lacore. NHT’s stock price dropped
approximately 25%, from $15.55 to $11.66, after the company’s October 5, 2005 announcement
that it was demoting the officers, who had failed to cooperate with an Audit Committee
investigation initiated in the fall of 2004.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 22(a) of the
Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 77u(a)] and Section 27 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 78aa]. Defendants have,
directly and indirectly, made use of the means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or
the mails in connection with the transactions described in this Complaint.

6. Venue lies in this Court pursuant to Section 22(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C.
§ 77u(2)] and Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78aa], because certain of the acts and
transactions described herein took place in the Northern District of Texas.

DEFENDANTS

7. Mark D. Weodburn, an individual residing in Southlake, Texas, was NHT’s

president and a director from 2000 through October 2005 and CFO from 1999 through August
2004. The company terminated his employment on November 14, 2005.

8. Terry LaCore, a resident of Flower Mound, Texas, was an NHT director from

March 2003 through October 2005 and the CEO of NHT’s chief subsidiary, then known as
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Lexxus International, Inc. (“Lexxus”), from its March 2001 inception through October 2005.

The company terminated his employment on November 14, 2005.
RELATED ENTITIES

9. Natural Health Trends Corp., a Delaware corporation with its principal place of

business in Dallas, Texas, is an international multi-level marketing business that sells personal
care, wellness and “quality of life” products through a network of independent distributors. The
company’s stock has traded on the NASDAQ National Market system since February 22, 2005
under the symbol “BHIP,” and prior to that date was quoted on the NASD over-the counter
bulletin board. Its common stock is registered with the Commission pursuant to Section 12(g) of
the Exchange Act.

10.  Woodridge Development Corp. (WDC”) is a West Virginia corporation with its

principal place of business in St. Mary’s, West Virginia. WDC’s bank account was controlled by
a Woodburn family member, and it’s only business was an unsuccessful West Virginia golf
course development. Beginning in 2002, LaCore and Woodburn caused payments from the
Distributor to be paid to WDC, apparently in order to take advantage of tax loss carryforwards
the company had accumulated.

11.  Middle Island Construction Company (“Middle Island”) is a Delaware

corporation with its principal place of business in Dallas, Texas. Middle Island was formed in
2001 and controlled by Woodburn. Woodburn caused the vast majority of the funds that WDC
received from the Distributor to be paid to Middle Island. Woodburn then distributed the funds
from Middle Island’s account to LaCore and for the benefit of himself and his family.

12.  Culpepper Cattle Company (“Culpepper”) is a Delaware corporation with its

principal place of business in Belpre, Ohio. Culpepper is owned and controlled by Woodburn
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family members. In February 2004, Woodburn caused NHT to send $256,200 to an escrow
account for one of Culpepper’s land acquisitions (the “Culpepper loan™).
| FACTS

13. Woodburn and LaCore joined NHT in February 1999 when the company acquired
the assets of Kaire International, a nutritional supplements multi-level marketing corporation.
Woodburn directed NHT’s day-to-day operations, including accounting and SEC reporting,
while LaCore was in charge of developing the worldwide distributor network and expanding the
business. NHT’s growth accelerated rapidly after it created Lexxus in early 2001 to market
products related to sexual vitality.

14. Woodburn was both CFO and the sole member of NHT’s board from August
2000 until March 2003. Woodburn was replaced as CFO in August 2004,

Mark Woodburn and LaCore Profited from
$2.5 Million in Payments from the Distributor

15. During the relevant period, Woodburn and LaCore, or entities that they directly or
indirectly controlled, received approximately $2.5 million from the Distributor, which had the
effect of hiding the money’s source and beneficiaries. The payments materially exceeded the
disclosed annual compensation for LaCore and Woodburn.

16.  The Distributor agreed to pay up to 37.5% of the commissions he received from
NHT as LaCore directed. The Distributor initially remitted the payments directly to LaCore
himself. In 2001, LaCore received over $130,000, $30,000 of which he passed on to Woodburn
and Culpepper.

17.  Inearly 2002, LaCore instructed the Distributor to make the payments to WDC.
From 2002 through the fall of 2005, the Distributor paid approximately $2.4 million to WDC.

Woodburn caused approximately $2 million of the Distributor payments to be transferred from
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WDC to Middle Island. Woodburn subsequently distributed payments from that entity to
himself, his family members, LaCore and Culpepper.

18.  In the late summer of 2005, the Distributor made payments of $30,000 each
directly to Woodburn and LaCore at LaCore’s instruction.

19. In total, LaCore received or benefited from almost $1.2 million of the Distributor
payments made either directly to him or through WDC and Middle Island. Woodburn and his
family benefited, directly or indirectly through family-controlled companies, from almost $1.3
million of the Distributor payments. Woodburn and LaCore’s receipt of these payments was not
disclosed to NHT’s investors until November 2005,

Mark Woodburn Caused NHT to Make An Undisclosed Related Party Loan

20.  During early 2004, Woodburn caused NHT to loan money to partially fund
Culpepper’s purchase of Kentucky land for which he had agreed to secure financing. In mid-
February 2004, NHT wired $256,200 to an attorney escrow account for the benefit of Culpepper.

21.  In March 2004, Woodburn, through Middle Island, made a $190,000 payment on
the loan using money that Middle Island received from the Distributor payments. The remaining
balance of the loan was reclassified to another receivable account and was written off at the end
of March 2004.

22.  Inthe fall of 2004, after he was no longer CFO, Woodburn told NHT accounting
personnel that the loan was made to a business associate, and provided an unsecured promissory
note as evidence. NHT accounting personnel restored the loan receivable, and the business
associate’s company subsequently repaid the remaining balance plus interest inrDecember 2004.

In fact, however, a Woodburn family-controlled company actually funded this payment.
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23. In early 2005, Woodburn and the business associate signed affidavits stating that
the business associate’s company made the $190,000 loan payment in March 2004 and that none
of the loan proceeds were paid or loaned to Woodburn or any entity with which he was affiliated.
In truth, Woodburn made the $190,000 payment through Middle Island, and the loan was made
for a Culpepper land purchase.

24. Accepting Woodburn’s statements, the note and affidavits as true, NHT failed to
disclose the Culpepper loan as a related party transaction in its Commission filings, including its
2004 Form 10-K filed in March 2005 and its S-1 registration statement, amended registration
statement, and preliminary and definitive proxy statements filed in April 2005.

Woodburn and L.aCore Caused NHT to Make
False and Misleading Commission Filings

25.  Woodburn signed management representation letters to NHT’s auditors in
connection with each of their annual audits and quarterly reviews from the second quarter of
2001 through the second quarter of 2005. These letters represented, among other things, that the
financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principlés
(“GAAP”), that there had been no fraud involving management or employees who had
significant roles in internal control, and that all related-party transactions had been properly
recorded or disclosed in the financial statements.

26.  NHT and Woodburn failed to disclose the Distributor payments in the
representation letters. Moreover, Woodburn and LaCore both failed to disclose the Distributor
payments in their February 2005 directors and officers (“D&0”) questionnaires, which NHT
used to prepare the April 2005 proxy statement that was incorporated by reference in the 2004
10-K filed March 31, 2005. In August 2005, Woodburn and LaCore again failed to disclose the

Distributor payments when they both signed a representation letter in connection with the second
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quarter 2005 auditor review. They inaccurately stated that they were not aware of any
inappropriate transactions or business arrangements that were a material conflict of interest, that
they were unaware of, among other things, any additional disclosure necessary to make the
financial statements conform to GAAP, and that they had responded truthfully and fully to all of
the auditor’s inquiries during the review.

27.  Asaresult of the misrepresentations and omissions described above, NHT filed
with the Commission preliminary and definitive proxy statements, annual statements on Forms
10-K and 10-KSB, a registration statement on Form S-1 and an amendment thereto, and a
quarterly statement on Form 10-Q that included false and misleading statements and omissions
concerning the Distributor payments and the Culpepper loan. These filings, all of which
Woodburn signed, are identified in Appendix A, attached to this complaint and fully
incorporated herein.

28. Further, Woodburn certified NHT’s Forms 10-KSB for the years ended December
31, 2002 and December 31, 2003, and Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004.

FIRST CLAIM

Violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act
[Against Defendants Woodburn and LaCore]

29.  Paragraphs 1 through 28 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference.

30. Defendants, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert with others, by using any
means or instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any
national securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security, have: (a)
employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud; (b) made untrue statements of material facts
and omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and (c) engaged in acts, practices
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and courses of business which operate as a fraud and deceit upon ptirchasers, prospective
purchasers and other persons.

31.  NHT filed a registration statement on Form S-1 and an amended registration
statement on Form S-1/A with the Commission jn connection with the offering of its securities.
The registration statements incorporated by reference NHT’s financial statements and other
Commission filings.

32.  Inthe offer and sale of securities and as part of and in furtherance of their scheme
to defraud, Defendants, directly and indirectly, made false and misleading statements of material
fact, and omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, including but not limited to
failing to disclose the Distributor payments and the Culpepper loan, as described in paragraphs 1
through 28 above.

33.  Defendants engaged in the conduct described in this claim knowingly or with
severe recklessness regarding the truth.

34.  Byreason of the foregoing, Defendants have violated and, unless enjoined, will
continue to violate Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)].

SECOND CLAIM

Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5
[Against Defendants Woodburn and LaCore]

35.  Paragraphs 1 through 34 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference.

36.  Defendants, directly or indirectly, in connection with the purchase or sale of
securities, by the use of any means or instruments of transportation or communication in
interstate commerce or by use of the mails, have: (a) employe,d devices, schemes and artifices to

defraud; (b) made untrue statements of material facts and omitted to state material facts
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necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they
were made, not misleading; and (c) engaged in acts, practices and courses of business which
operate as a fraud and deceit upon purchasers, prospective purchasers and other persons.

37.  Inthe purchase and sale of securities and as part of and in furtherance of their
scheme to defraud, Defendants, directly and indirectly, made false and misleading statements of
material fact, and omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, including but not
limited to failing to disclose the Distributor payments and the Culpepper loan, as described in
paragraphs 1 through 28 above.

38.  Defendants engaged in the conduct described in this claim knowingly or with
severe recklessness regarding the truth.

39. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants have violated and, unless enjoined, will
continue to violate Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17
C.F.R. §§ 240.10b-5].

THIRD CLAIM
Aiding and Abetting Defendant Woodburn’s
Violations of Exchange Act Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5
[Against Defendant LaCore]

40.  Paragraphs 1 through 39 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference.

41.  Based on the conduct alleged herein, Defendant Woodburn violated Section 10(b)
of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 by making false and misleading statements of material fact
and omitting to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of

the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, including but not limited to

failing to disclose the Distributor payments and the Culpepper loan.
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42. Defendant LaCore, in the manner set forth above, knowingly or with severe
recklessness regarding the truth, provided substantial assistance to Defendant Woodburn in
connection with his violations of Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5.

43. By reason of the foregoing, Defendant LaCore aided and abetted Defendant
Woodburn’s violations of, and unless enjoined, will aid and abet further violations of Section
10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. §§ 240.10b-5].

FOURTH CLAIM

Violations of Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 142-3 and 14a-9
[Against Defendants Woodburn and LaCore]

44, Paragraphs 1 through 43 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference.

45.  Defendants, by use of the mails or any means or instrumentality of interstate
commerce or of any facility of a national securities exchange or otherwise, in contravention of
such rules and regulations as the Commission may prescribe as necessary or appropriate for the
public interest or for the protection of investors, have: (a) solicited or permitted the use of their
name to solicit any proxy or consent or authorization in respect of any security (other than an
exempted security) registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act; or (b) solicited by
means of any proxy statement, a form of proxy, notice of meeting or other communication,
written or oral, containing any statement which, at the time and in light of the circumstances in
which it is made, was false or misleading with respect to any material fact, or which omitted to
state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein not false or misleading
or necessary to correct any statement in any earlier communication with respect to the

solicitation of a proxy for the same meeting or subject matter which has become false or

misleading.
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46.  NHT filed preliminary and definitive proxy statements in December 2002,
February 2003, April 2003 and April 2005. Defendant Woodbum signed all the proxy
statements despite knowing these statements failed to disclose the Distributor payments and the
Culpepper loan (with respect to the April 2005 proxy statements). Defendant LaCore provided a
false 2005 D&O questionnaire in which he failed to disclose his knowledge of material related-
party transactions.

47. By reason of the foregoing, Defendaﬁts have violated and, unless enjoined, will
continue to violate Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78n(a)] and Rules 14a-3 and
14a-9 [17 C.F.R. §§ 240.14a-3 and 240.14a-9].

FIFTH CLAIM
Aiding and Abetting Defendant Woodburn’s Violations of

Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 14a-3 and 14a-9
[Against Defendant LaCore]

48.  Paragraphs 1 through 47 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference.

49.  NHT filed preliminary and definitive proxy statements in December 2002,
February 2003, April 2003 and April 2005. Defendant Woodburn signed all the proxy
statements despite knowing these statements failed to disclose the Distributor payments.
Defendant LaCore knowingly or with severe recklessness provided substantial assistance in
Woodburn’s failure to disclose the Distributor payments.

50. By reason of the foregoing, Defendant LaCore aided and abetted Defendant
Woodburn’s violations of, and unless enjoined, will aid and abet further violations of Section
14(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78n(a)] and Rules 14a-3 and 14a-9 [17 C.F.R. §§
240.14a-3 and 240.14a-9].

SIXTH CLAIM

Aiding and Abetting NHT’s Violations of
Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1 and 13a-13
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[Against Defendant Woodburn]

51.  Paragraphs 1 through 50 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference.

52. Based on the conduct alleged herein, NHT violated Section 13(a) of the Exchange
Act and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1, and 13a-13 thereunder.

53.  Defendant Woodburn, in the manner set forth above, knowingly provided
assistance to NHT, as an issuer of securities pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, in its
failing to file with the Commission, in accordance with the rules and regulations the Commission
has prescribed, information and documents required by the Commission to keep reasonably
current the information and documents required to be included in or filed with an application or
registration statement filed pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act and annual reports and
quarterly reports as the Commission has prescribed.

54. By reason of the foregoing, Defendant Woodburn aided and abetted NHT’s
violations of, and unless enjoined, will aid aﬁd abet further violations of, Section 13(a) of the
Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1 and 13a-13 [17 C.F.R. §§ 240.12b-

20, 240.13a-1, and 240.13a-13].

SEVENTH CLAIM
Violations of Rule 13a-14 of the Exchange Act
[Against Defendant Woodburn]

55.  Paragraphs 1 through 54 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference.
56.  Defendant Woodburn, in the manner set forth above, violated Rule 13a-14 of the
- Exchange Act by, directly or indirectly:
(a) certifying a periodic report containing financial statements filed by an issuer
pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act when he failed to:

(1) review the report;
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(2) ensure, to the best of his knowledge, that the report did not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by the
report;

(3) ensure, to the best of his knowledge, that the financial statements, and
other financial information included in the report, fairly presented in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer
as of, and for, the periods presented in the report;

(4) ensure that he had established and maintained disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e), for the
issuer and had: (i) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused
such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under his supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the issuer, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, was made known to him by others within those entities, particularly
during periods in which the periodic report is being prepared; (ii) evaluated the
effectiveness of the issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report his conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by the report based on such
evaluation; and (iii) disclosed in the report any change in the issuer’s internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the issuer’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual report) that had
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materially affected, or was reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer’s
internal control over financial reporting; and
(5) ensure that he disclosed, based on his most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the issuer’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions): (i) all significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which were reasonably likely to adversely affect the issuer’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and (ii) any fraud,
whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who had a
significant role in the issuer’s internal controls over financial reporting; and
(b) having a certification of disclosure, as specified in Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), (b)
or (¢), signed on his behalf pursuant to a power of attorney or other form of confirming authority.
57. By reason of the foregoing, Defendant Woodburn has violated and, unless
enjoined, will continue to violate, Exchange Act Rule 13a-14 [17 C.F.R. § 240.13a-14].
EIGHTH CLAIM
Aiding and Abetting NHT’s Violations of Exchange Act

Sections 13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B)
[Against Defendant Woodburn])

58.  Paragraphs 1 through 57 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference.

59.  Based on the conduct alleged herein, NHT violated Section 13(b)(2)(A) and
13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act.

60.  Defendant Woodburn, in the manner set forth above, knowingly or with severe
recklessness, provided substantial assistance to NHT in connection with its failure to make and

keep books, records, and accounts, which, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflected

NHT transactions and dispositions of its assets.
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61.  Defendant Woodburn, in the manner set forth above, knowingly or with severe
recklessness, provided substantial assistance to NHT in connection with its failure to devise and
maintain a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances
that:

¢} transactions were recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with GAAP;
2) transactions were recorded as necessary:

(a) to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles or any other criteria applicable to such
statements; and

(b) to maintain accountability for assets;

3) access to assets was permitted only in accordance with management’s
general or specific authorization; and

“) the recorded accountability for assets was compared with the existing
assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action was taken with respect to any
differences.

62.  Byreason of the foregoing, Defendant Woodburn aided and abetted NHT’s
violation of, and unless enjoined, will aid and abet further violations of Exchange Act Sections
13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) [15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A)].

NINTH CLAIM

Violations of Rule 13b2-2 of the Exchange Act
[Against Defendants Woodburn and LaCore]

63.  Paragraphs 1 through 62 are re-alleged and incorporated by reference.

64.  Defendants violated Rule 13b2-2 of the Exchange Act by, directly or indirectly:
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(a) making or causing to be made a materially false or misleading statement to an
accountant in connection with; or
(b) omitting to state, or causing another person to omit to state, any material fact
necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading, to an accountant in connection with:
(1) any audit, review or examinatioh of the financial statements of an
issuer; or
2) the preparation or filing of any document or report required to be
filed with the Commission.
65. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants have violated and, unless enjoined, will
continue to violate, Exchange Act Rule 13b2-2 [17 C.F.R. § 240.13b2-2].

RELIEF REQUESTED

For these reasons, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court enter a judgment:

(a) permanently enjoining Defendant Woodburn from violating, directly or indirectly,
Section 17(a) of the Securities Act and Sections 10(b), and 14(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules
10b-5, 13a-14, 13b2-2, 14a-3 and 14a-9 thereunder and aiding and abetting violations of
Sections 13(a), 13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1 and
13a-13 thereunder;

(b)  permanently enjoining Defendant LaCore from violating, directly or indirectly,
Section 17(a) of the Securities Act and Sections 10(b) and 14(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules
10b-5, 13b2-2, 14a-3 and 14a-9 thereunder and aiding and abetting violations of Sections 10(b)

and 14(a) of the Exchange Act and Rules 10b-5, 14a-3 and 14a-9 thereunder;
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(©) ordering Defendant Woodburn to pay a $60,000 civil penalty under Section 20(d)
of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)], and Section 21(d) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §
78u(d)];

(d) ordering Defendant LaCore to pay a $50,000 civil penalty under Section 20(d) of
the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)], and Section 21(d) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §
78u(d)];

(e) prohibiting Defendants under Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C.

§ 78u(d)(2)] and Section 20(e) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(¢e)] from acting as an officer
or director of any issuer that has a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the
Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78l] or that is required to file reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the
Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 780(d)] for five years from the date the judgment is entered;

® granting such further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.

Dated: September 3, 2008 Respectfully submitted,

Quwu@m@ Lol

ifer D. Brandt
Texas Bar No. 00796242
Securities and Exchange Commission
Fort Worth Regional Office
801 Cherry Street, 19™ Floor
Fort Worth, TX 76102-6882
Ph: (817) 978-6442
Fax: (817) 978-4927
brandtj@sec.gov
COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFFS
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APPENDIX A

10-KSB

12-31-01 | 4-16-02
Preliminary 12-11-02
Proxy
10-KSB 12-31-02 | 3-31-03
Definitive Proxy 2-13-03
Definitive Proxy 4-25-03
10-KSB 12-31-03 | 4-13-04
10-KSB/A 12-31-03 | 4-29-04
10-Q 9-30-04 11-12-04
10-K 12-31-04 | 3-31-05
S-1 4-13-05
S-1/A 4-26-05
Preliminary 4-11-05
Proxy
Definitive Proxy 4-27-05
10-Q 3-31-05 5-16-05
10-Q 6-30-05 8-15-05
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